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Preface:

From the earliest days of Canadian expansion into the west, the new
Dominion of Canada also had to acknowledge and treat with a group of
peoples who were not Indian, but who were defined in part by their mixed
Aboriginal (Indian)-European ancestry and in part by distinctive
adaptations, cultures, and identities. These were the Half-breeds or Metis.
They too possessed aboriginal title, through their aboriginal mothers and

grandmothers.’

It has also become evident that each party to treaty or scrip, whether
aboriginal people or government, misunderstood the intentions of the
other party and the agreement. Oral traditions and personal recollection
of individuals present at treaty time in 1899 or 1921, are unanimous in
stating that land was not discussed. On the contrary, these people
believed that they were signing peace treaties and that there would be no
restrictions placed on their way of life. The Metis who took land scrip or
cash setflements did not understand that they were giving up Aboriginal
title. By analogy, scrip could not ferminate Metis Aboriginal rights, as

treaty had not done so for First Nation's peoples.?

! McCormack, Patricia, A. School of Native Studies, University of Alberta, July 1997
Northern Metis, Treaties 8 and No. 11 and the Issuance of Scrip. p 6.

2 Payment, Diane
“Treaties and Scrip: The Metis Nation of the Northwest Territories: The Historic Athabasca - Mackenzie”
in Lawrence J. Barkwell, Leah Dorion and Daxren F.Prefontaine eds., Metis Legacy (Winnipeg: Pemmican
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Introduction:

Historic treaties have been characterized by legal advisors, academics and advocates of
First Nations’ rights, as the cornerstone of the Crown-Indian relationship. Likewise for
the Metis people, historical encounters with Canadian scrip commissions should have
been the foundation for a new beginning as these encounters represent the original
recognition of Metis aboriginal titte and rights by the Crown in right of Canada. Yet as
the Metis people across Canada have come to realize, scrip certainly has not been
upheld as an indispensable basis for the relationship between Canada and the Metis.
On the contrary, for the most part, the history of scrip as a Canadian aboriginal policy
has been cloaked in mystery. Upon closer examination and study of the scrip program
commencing in Manitoba, across the prairies and into the Mackenzie River District, a
story of convoluted policy, corruption, exploitation, fraud, abuse, discrimination, injustice
and confusion emerges. Educational advances within the Metis community, in the latter
part of the 20" century have sparked a resurgence of interest in Metis history and rights.
As a result of this re-awakening and the renaissance of aboriginal rights generally, more
light is now being shed on the legacy of scrip which is embodied in the history of the

Metis peoples and the Canadian state.

The subject of scrip is largely unknown in the present day Northwest Territories. From
an early age, the author heard people in Fort Providence occasionally mention scrip
which was “given” to their parents. This was usually in passing and in the context of

discussions to do with unrelated events that may have taken place early in the 1920's.

Publications, 2001). pp. 164-166.



Thus the subject of scrip was generally used as a benchmark in reference to events
which took place between 1921 and 1924, At times, questions were asked, “| wonder
why we did not get scrip? Or why is scrip not paid every year like treaty?”. Usually the
conversation and discussion concerning scrip would end with “this was before we were
born so it was not given to us.” This sparked a discernible interest in the subject on the
part of the author. After spending considerable time researching the subject matter, it
has become increasingly evident to the author that the purpose or implications of scrip

were not very well understood by the people affected by its imposition.

With the passing of successive generations of Metis elders, there now seems to be
even less knowledge in the North on the subject of scrip which was issued to the Metis
people in what was formerly known as the Mackenzie District. For the most part, Metis
rights, and the issuance of scrip at the time of Treaties 8 and 11 have been glossed
over and obscured. Aboriginal rights discussions in the context of present day
negotiations in the Deh Cho tend to focus on the significance of the treaties, with very
little knowledge or emphasis on the associated “Half-breed® scrip commissions of 1900
and 1921, In fact, it can be said with a degree of certainty that the term “scrip” along
with its significance has been hidden in the shadows, and nearly been forgotten by
many, including Metis-Dene descendants of scrip recipients themselves. This obvious

lack of understanding and misinformation continues to this day.

31\/J{t:C0rmack, Patricia,

Northern Metis, Treaties 8 and 11 and the Issuance of Scrip: School of Native Studies,
University of Alberta, July 1997, pp 1. The history of the terminolo gy of “Half-breed” and “Metis” in the
Mackenzie Basin is complex and largely undocumented. Although “Half-breed” is considered pejorative, its was
commonly used simply to denote people of mixed ancestry. In some regions, Half-breed was the term of choice for
people whose European ancestors were Scottish or Orcadian, and Metis, the term for people whose European
ancestors were French. Both terms are used in this paper, respecting the documented historical usages.



As an introduction to the mysterious subject of scrip the following passage was taken

from the National Archives website on aboriginal peoples:

Existing scrip records at the National Archives offer primary evidence on
the federal treatment of this indigenous group and will eventually constitute
a basis from which the Metis can begin building a renewed relationship

with the federal government.*

This paper will examine, definitions of scrip, its origin, purpose and its application to
Metis-Dene descendants here in the North. Up to this point in time, there has been a
marked lack of academic research and more general studies related to scrip specifically
for Deh Cho Metis-Dene descendants® in the present day Northwest Territories. It is
hoped that in addition to serving as an educational resource, this study will provide

some insight on the historical events surrounding scrip.

As part of our study of scrip, it is our intention to examine and expose its failure and
shortcomings as an aboriginal policy. A selected Northern case study will also establish
links between events related to the larger story of scrip on the prairies and how
“irregularities” associated with the issuance of scrip on the prairies extended into the
Mackenzie District as a result of activities attributed to scrip hunters and syndicates

exploiting the disadvantaged position of the Metis people. We will conclude with brief

*National Archives of Canada website on Metis scrip. www.archives.ca/02/0201200103/10_e html

> The terms “Metis-Dene descendants” and “Deh Cho Metis” are used interchangeably in this paper in
reference to Deh Cho Citizens who descend from both the historic Metis families who evolved in the Mackenzie
District in the late 18" and mid 19" centuries and the Dene.
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discussions on how scrip relates to present day descendants of scrip recipients in the

context of current negotiations in the Deh Cho region of the Northwest Territories.

Methodology

Research for this study was conducted by consulting primary sources such as archival
records at the National Archives of Canada more specifically reference group RG 15.
This section contains records and documents of both the Department of Indian Affairs,
and the Department of the Interior. Copies of archival documents were copied for
additional analysis. Various historical records, published biographies, history books,
academic studies, and legal research papers were also consulted for related information
concerning the Metis people and scrip. The writer relies on quotes and passages from
existing publications and written correspondence to draw on documented information in
the historical record concerning the case study of Alexis Lafferty. This approach takes
the information provided by the “players” themselves which emphasizes and affirms the
authenticity of the scrip story as is being presented by the author. Oral history interviews
were also included as part of the study. It should be noted that this paper does not
necessarily make technical references to the many pieces of legislation pertaining to
Mackenzie District scrip distribution as these have been previously researched and are

well documented.

Metis Rights in the Deh Cho - The Historic Mackenzie District



Although, Metis history and issues may not be well understood by many, it is an
established fact that the indigenous Metis-Dene descendants of the Mackenzie River
basin possess aboriginal rights in their traditional homelands. It is also recognized that in
terms of culture and traditions, the Deh Cho Metis have evolved in a distinct way in
comparison to their Dene cousins. Although the Dene and Metis may differ in terms of
culture and traditions, Metis aboriginal rights have the same origins and basis as Dene
rights, therefore they co-exist. Previous academic and legal research analysis along
with Canadian government aoﬁons'have clearly acknowledged the existence of
indigenous Metis rights and aboriginal title in the Mackenzie River District of the
Northwest Territories. In his research entitled, Metis Land Rights in Canada, Professor

Joseph E. Magnet documents the following:

Metis claim aboriginal rights through their indian ancestry on the same
basis as other native peoples; by way of their racial and social history.®
The question of aboriginal rights as applied to the Metis people has been
explored by Louise Mandell in a separate Commission study. The Metis
had a special claim arising out of their heritage and their use and
occupation of their territory. Ms. Mandell gave substance of Metis
aboriginal rights by exploring the content of the Crown's duty towards
aboriginal people’s generally, Ms. Mandell maintained that when Canada
assumed jurisdiction over Rupert’'s Land it became constitutionally obliged

fo:

Magnet, J oseph Elliot Metis Land Rights in Canadap. 5
www.constitutional-law. net/metis.html
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1} deal fairly and equitably with the aboriginal people; 2) respect the rights
of the aboriginal people to the use and occupation of their territory,; 3)
obtain the consent of the aboriginal people prior to the use of their territory
for settlement; and 4) compensate the aboriginal peoples for the use of

their territory.”

In1996 the following conclusions were reached by the Royal Commission on Aboriginal

Peoples.

The legal rights of the Metis people include the following:

Aboriginal rights are recognized and affirmed by section 35 of the
Constitution Act, 1982. They include title to land, resource exploitation,
cultural rights and self government. Although only existing rights are so
protected, it seems clear that the aboriginal rights of the Metis people have
never been fully extinguished. The precise extent to which they may have
been extinguished will require careful situation-by-situation analysis. In
many cases, however, the continued existence of Metis Aboriginal rights is
obvious. Where they do continue to exist, Metis aboriginal rights are

independent of the rights of other Aboriginal peoples.®

7 Ibid.

¥ Royal Commission on Aboriginal Peoples, Volume 4 - Perspectives and Realities Appendix 5A General

Sources of Metis Rights. pp 37.
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Definition and development of scrip policy

The requirement or process of negotiating Indian treaties has its roots or origins which
stem from the Royal Proclamation of 1763. In 1870, following the crystallization of
Canada as a nation state, the Rupert's Land and Northwestern Territory Order was
issued. At the time, the young Dominion of Canada agreed to take over the lands

formerly under the "jurisdiction” of the Hudson’s Bay Company.

As aresult, treaties 8 and 11 were negotiated as part of Canada’s nation building after
confederation. From Canada’s perspective, treaties were based on the premise of
surrendering and extinguishing aboriginal title. in return, the First Nations peoples were
to be compensated, given annuities along with the “selection or claiming of a parcel or
parcels of surrendered land” to be set aside in the form of communal enclaves also
known as reserves for the native people to live on. In her research on Northern Metis,
Treaties 8 and 11 and the Issuance of Scrip, Professor Patricia A. McCormack

documents the following:

From the earliest days of Canadian expansion info the west, the new
Dominion of Canada also had to acknowledge and treat with a group of
peoples who were not Indian, but who were defined in part by their mixed
Aboriginal (Indian)-European ancestry and in part by distinctive
adaptations, cultures, and identities. These were the Half-breeds or Metis.

They too possessed aboriginal title, through their aboriginal mothers and
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grandmothers.®

It must be noted that this period was dominated by British thinking in terms
of social evolution. Apparently the British considered themselves to be at
the top of the social achievement scale. As part of the racist discourse of
this period, it was thought that aboriginal peoples had to take a similar path
in order to get to the same level or to achieve the same status as the
British. Canadian policy of the day seems to indicate that although the
Metis were at times considered to have inherited the worst of both their
ancestral races they were still considered to be further advanced along the
evolutionary path than the Indians. Furthermore it was thought that the

scrip process would aid in their social evolution.™

The origins of scrip as a policy for dealing with half-breeds has its roots in Manitoba. In
the late1860's the Metis of Red River feared for their future in the midst of the changes
associated with the imminent Canadian acquisition of the North-West." They organized
an armed resistence commonly known as the Red River Rebellion which eventually
ensured that Canada would deal with their concerns before the take over of the
Northwest Territories. Louis Riel sent three Red River representatives to negotiate

Manitoba's entry into Canada upon terms which would protect Metis interests. This is

? McCormack, Patricia, A. School of Native Studies, University of Alberta, July 1997
Northern Metis, Treaties 8 and No. 11 and the Issuance of Scrip. p.0.

Wibid.

H Magnet, Joseph, , Metis Land Rights in Canada, Introduction, p §
www/constitutional-law.net/metis. html.
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viewed by some as early self-government and land claims talks with Canada which were

intended to satisfy unrest and deal with western alienation.

On this basis there was agreement that 1.4 million acres of land would be set aside to
protect Metis land interests in the Red River area. Rather than immediately reserving
and providing these lands for the collective Metis community, it is said that Canada
breached the terms of the agreement and understanding by subsequently legislating an
individual land grant system. The allocations of these individual land grants took many
years to implement. Some allege that this was intentional to ensure that the Manitoba
Metis did not get the lands they had negotiated for. In an1870 letter, Prime Minister John

A. Macdonald outlined the Dominion government's long term goal regarding Metis lands:

"these impulsive half-breeds....must be kept down by a strong hand until

they are swamped by the influx of settlers."’

In the meantime, hoards of white European settlers were arriving into the area and

eventually they took over most of the Metis’ lands in Manitoba.

. Definitions:

The term scrip is generally believed to have origins from the term "subscription” , a

receipt for a portion of a loan, This term is often mispronounced and misspelled as

2 Metis Aboriginal Title Research Initiative, Information Sheet, Introduction, History of the Metis,
School of Native Studies, University of Alberta,
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“script”. The following are some additional definitions and terms which are used in this

study.

Scrip is a certificate giving the owner the right to receive payment later in the form of
cash, goods or land. It was used by the government to distribute land to military
personnel, veterans, Northwest Mounted Police and Metis: the notes look like paper
money and were issued in monetary values of $ 80.00, $ 160.00, $ 240.00 or 80 acres,

160 acres, and 240 acres."

Dominion Land: As far as the author can determine, dominion land was a land mass or
area that Canada had obtained title to or "assumed jurisdiction to” by the purported
extinguishment of Indian title by way of surrenders in the form of treaties and other

means.

Scrip Certificates: The actual notes or pieces of paper that came to be known as scrip.

A coupon for dominion land or money to be used for dominion lands.

Scrip was a means for the Canadian government to distribute land to certain groups it
wished to reward. Thus it was issued to various members of the military, such as the
volunteer officers and soldiers “actively engaged in bearing arms in the suppression of

the Indian and half-breed outbreak in 1885." " It was also given to the Metis people in

13 Metis Association of Alberta, J. Sawchuk, “scrip,” Metis Land Rights in Alberta, Edmonton: Metis
Association of Alberta, 1981, pp. 8§7-117.

4Tbid,
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recognition of their aboriginal rights and the purported extinguishment of such rights.
This is the purpose and focus of this study. Throughout its long history of use between

1870 and 1924 there were three types of scrip issued to the Metis.

L.and scrip: The first type was what was known as land scrip. It was a certificate which
entitled the person who was named on the certificate to a piece of dominion surveyed
land. It was issued for a specific amount of dominion land open for homestead entry and
could only be located for land in the name of the Metis owner of the certificate. Refer to

iNlustration No. 1.

Money scrip: The second type was known as money scrip. This was like temporary
money in the form of a coupon or certificate which was made out to the bearer. It had to
be “cashed in.” it was intended to be used to purchase what was classified as dominion
surveyed land. This type of scrip is defined as personal property; made out to the bearer
for a specific amount of money and could be sold for the value it was made out for to
anyone willing to buy it or it could be redeemed for a parcel of land. This type of scrip
was not considered real estate, rather it was classified as personal property. It should
be noted that in terms of disposition there are different laws which apply to real estate
versus personal property. Personal property can be sold quite readily. Refer to

fllustration no. 1a.
Scrip cash grants: The third type was simply a cash grant which was given to Metis

individuals in the treaty 11 geographic area of the Mackenzie District. Individual cash

payments of $ 240.00 were eventually made by the treaty party in 1924.

-16~



. Purpose of scrip

Like the treaties, the issuance of scrip as a Canadian policy or program was based on
the concept of extinguishment of aboriginal title, Canada’s intention was to have
immigrants and settlers populate the west s0 it had to have authority and jurisdiction
before it could open up the land for settlement and development of the natural
resources. On this basis, it had to deal with the native peoples. Hence the negotiation of

treaties with First Nations and the issuance of scrip to half-breeds.

Evidently, there were two policy streams or approaches for dealing with indian and Metis
aboriginal title. In examining the terms of treaty and scrip policies, it becomes obvious
that there was a predetermined means of assessing the aboriginal rights and title of the
Dene and Mackenzie River Metis. The issue as to whether scrip extinguished the
aboriginal title of the Mackenzie District Metis raises serious legal questions and remains
unresolved. In discussing these issues, one must ask whether treaty annuity payments
were some sort of compensation for aboriginal title? Or do treaty annuities represent
compensation for interference in a way of life? If this is the case than the Metis should

also have received similar entitiements in the form of annuities.

. History of use

As previously indicated the scrip program was originally introduced in Manitoba to
“satisfy and extinguish the Indian title” of half-breeds. It was later implemented across
the west in the area that later becarne the prairie provinces and eventually it was also

issued at the same time as treaties 8 and 11 in the what is now the present day
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Northwest Territories.

. The introduction of scrip in the present day Northwest Territories. Where

was it offered?

In 1900 and 1901 the Treaty 8 Athabasca Half-breed Commission issued land and
money scrip at Fort Resolution. In 1921, 1922 and 1924, the Treaty 11 - Mackenzie
Half-breed Commission took applications and later issued cash grants to some of the
Metis in Fort Providence, Fort Simpson, Fort Liard, Fort Rae, Fort Wrigley, Fort
Norman, Fort Good Hope, Fort McPherson and Aklavik. Other Metis in these
communities who were deemed to be “living the Indian mode of life” were taken under
treaty. Under an exceptional authorization by the Federal Government, 1921 cash
grants were also paid to Metis in Hay River, Fort Resolution and Fort Smith. This is
referenced as a triangular area which is basically the Treaty 8 geographic area within
the present day Northwest Territories. These payments were made to Metis families
who had originally been missed by the Treaty 8 Athabasca Half-breed Commission in
1900 and 1901.

. The value of scrip

The value of scrip was originally set by the Federal government commencing in
Manitoba. At the time, the Dominion government had arbitrarily valued land at $ 1.00
per acre. Accordingly, money scrip certificates were issued in monetary values of

$ 80.00, $ 160.00, $ 240.00 and land scrip certificates were issued as follows; 80

acres, 160 acres and 240 acres. These types of scrip notes were issued across the

18-



three prairies provinces and into the Mackenzie District Treaty 8 area which included
Fort Resolution. Treaty 11 cash grants of $ 240.00 were issued to Metis in the
Northwest Territories Metis communities previously mentioned. As indicated, cash
grants were also paid to some Metis individuals in Fort Resolution in 1924. In their
research studies concerning Metis rights in the Mackenzie area, Mr. Nick Sibbeston and
Mr. Richard I. Hardy presented the following concerning scrip in the Northwest

Territories.

There were in the Mackenzie District 172 half-breed claims allowed, and
such claims were satisfied by the payment of $ 240.00 in cash to each of
the claimants, aggregating $ 41,280.00. Thus for $ 41, 280.00 the Half-
breeds had supposedly given up all their aboriginal rights. What a deal!'s

Thus a very confused chapter in Canadian history was concluded. What
had started in Manitoba in 1870 as an attempt to place legal ownership of
land into the hands of the Metis evolved into a system of swindles on the
prairies and finally into a straight cash pay off, with no option, in the
Mackenzie District. The cash pay off in the Mackenzie District was justified
by the Government of Canada on the basis that no land was good for
farming in the Northwest Territories and therefore, no land was worth

anything."®

ESSibbeston, Nick, Half-breed Scrip in the Mackenzie Area of the Northwest Territories, A Study for the
Metis Association of the Northwest Territories. pp. 2-3.

16 Hardy, Richard, Metis Rights in the Mackenzie River District of the Northwest Territories. IV,
Canadian Legislative Treatment of the Metis. 1980. p. 21.
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As we know, there is plenty of valuable land for farming in the Northwest Territories as
farming has taken place in the Fort Providence area as well as other locations.
Furthermore, it is known that over time the Deh Cho has the potential for the

development of its vast resources which are estimated to be worth billions of dollars.

. Policy basis for offering scrip in the North.

In preparations and staging for the Treaty 8 and the Athabasca Half-breed Commission,
the following statement by way of order in Council No. 918 of 1899 was signed and

approved by Wilfred Laurier, the then Prime Minister of Canada.

Whatever rights they have, they have in virtue of their Indian blood: and
the first interference with such rights will be when a surrender is effected
with the territorial rights of the Indians. If is obvious that while differing in
degree, Indian and half-breed rights in an unceded terrifory must be co-

existent, and should be properly extinguished at the same time”’,

. How was scrip cashed in?

Land and money scrip notes were expected to be taken to a Dominion lands office to be

‘cashed in” for a piece of surveyed land. Academic research by Professor Frank Tough

and Leah Dorion on the Metis people of Northern Manitoba and Northwest

1 Hardy, Richard, Metis Rights in the Mackenzie River District of the Northwest Territories. IV.
Canadian Legislative Treatment of the Metis. 1980. pp. 16-17.
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Saskatchewan, has shown that surveyed lands and dominion lands offices were usually
hundreds of miles away from where the Metis claimants were living. Therefore the Metis
people in the North would have to give up their way of living to relocate to where
surveyed land was available. On this basis, it was concluded that Northern Metis people
had little option but to accept token sums of money offered by speculators and travelling
syndicates who were backed by business elites further south. [t should be noted that
following the signing of treaty 11 in 1921, only cash grants were actually paid to Metis

individuals,

. Who took scrip?

As planned, Treaty Commissioner Henry A. Conroy arrived in Fort Providence in July,
1921, for the purpose of making a freaty. Mr. Conroy had also been appointed to serve
as Half-breed commissioner for the: Treaty 11 Commission which is also known as the
Mackenzie Half-breed Commission. Treaty 11 was negotiated and signed by
representatives of the Dene. The scrip policy was then effected and applied in the

region for the Metis who were not expected to take treaty.

But who was Indian and who Metis? 1t was obviously more than a matter
of blood, for some Treaty Indians were of mixed racial heritage, in some
cases probably genetically and certainly culturally identical to many Metis.
Often the division was a matter of choice, and in some cases a matter of

chance.™

'# Coates and Morrison Treaty 11 Research Report, 1986, p 46.
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As we are aware, both scrip and treaty were not of the Metis’ making. Accepting treaty
meant giving up certain rights which some of the Metis people may not have been willing

to give up. These are listed below:

. forfeiture of their economy, way of life and culture.
. the right to own property

. the right to vote

. the right to drink spirits

. their right to work for traders and the government as interpreters etc.

For those who refused to accept treaty as it was offered, cash grants without land were

issued. It is obvious that the choices were inequitable.

. What were the implications of scrip?

In later years it would be discovered that scrip and treaty had created legal divisions
between the so called non-status Metis and Dene in terms of their rights. Forthe
Mackenzie District Metis there were no known public negotiations involved, and no
guarantees of certain rights after being given scrip. It is apparent that the long term
implications of the scrip policy were not understood by the Metis people of the
Mackenzie District. This is likely because there were no negotiations. Unlike treaties
which were brought forward with formal prepared documents, scrip involved little or no
documents. There is no statement, agreement or declaration of what the Metis where

giving up on their applications to participate in the grants which were being offered.

22



Refer to illustration no. 2 which provides an example of a 1924 application form for
participation in a cash grant in the Mackenzie District. All the Metis have to show is a
declaration of the individuals applying to participate in the grant and a signed receipt
indicating that they received $ 240.00, two or three years after submitting their

application. Refer to illustration no. 3.

It becomes apparent that the scrip policy intended for the Mackenzie District was pre-
determined and simply imposed. On this basis, cash grants were distributed to Metis
individuals. In this respect, it is submitted that the equitable principles of the Rupert's
Land Order were not applied to the Metis. By issuing scrip grants Canada purported to
unilaterally extinguish the aboriginal rights and title of the Metis people. This is contrary

to the Royal Proclamation of 17863,

. Why people took scrip?

Research carried out by the Metis Association of the Northwest Territories in May, 1975
suggests that Metis families accepted scrip which was given to them, as it came to be
expected. It had been given eisewhere. Furthermore, it is apparent from the following
interviews with scrip recipients of 1921 cash grants that the land was not mentioned, and

generally they did not know why the money was paid to them.

Victor Lafferty - Fort Providence
Born - 1887 at Fort Liard

Filled in application in 1921 at Fort Providence and only got paid by two
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cheques at Fort Norman in 1924. Nothing was said about why the money
was given to half-breeds. He says “they had it all fixed up I guess”. There
was no choice as to whether they wanted land or money. They did not say
that they were giving up land for the money. Everyone expected money as
they had heard that scrip was given in Fort Resolution and in areas further

south.

He says the signatures are his signature. The witness to his signature
when he received the cheques was a priest. He received for himself and
four children. This amounted to $ 1,200.00. He says that year he made
$1600.00 trapping so he says when he got the money " it was good”. The
signatures are different from 1921 to 1924, but it is due to his own change

in writing style.'

Sarah Sibbeston - Hay River
Born - 1905 at Fort Simpson

Her dad is Jimmy Sibbeston who was born in 1872 and had died in 1974.

She says her dad got scrip for Henry and Mabel. With this money he got a
stove and windows for the house in the old Indian Village at Hay River. At
the time she got the $ 240.00 she was 18 years old. She was working at

the residential school. Mr. McDougall came to see her, and asked if she

¥ Sibbeston, Nick, Half-breed scrip in the Mackenzie Area, Legal Research Project by the Metis

Association of the Northwest Territories. Interview attachments to the report.

24



wanted cash or wished to put it in the bank.

The § 240.00 was a big amount in those days. She had worked for the
HBC for two years for $ 0.50 a day plus room and board. She does not
recall signing anything, though she does recognize the person who had
witness her signature on the receipt. The money was wrapped in paper.
Nothing was said to her as to why she was getting the money. Land was

not mentioned.?°

In terms of the delivery and issuance of scrip on the prairies, it has been established
that the southern scrip experience was marred by corruption. Some have gone as far as
to say that the prairie Metis were bilked out of their rights and the scrip program was a
sham. There were no lawyers or properly qualified advisors to represent collective Metis
interests, and it has now become apparent that the government did not protect their
interests as should have been the case. In many situations, Metis families were
susceptible to unscrupulous speculators as they were dealt with on a one-to-one basis.
We will now turn to a specific case in which we will explore irregularities which

penetrated the North at the time of treaty 8 adhesions in 1900.

Case Study: Did Alexis Lafferty extinguish his aboriginal title?

Alexis Lafferty was born at Old Fort Rae in 1862. Old Fort Rae is located at Rae point

on the North Arm of Great Slave Lake. He was the son of Louison Laferte dit Lenoir (or

%0 Sibbeston, Nick, Metis Association of the Northwest Territories, Half-breed scrip in the Mackenzie
Area. Interview attachments at the end of the report.
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Lanoix) and Marie Lesperance. The family of Louison Laferte and Marie Lesperance
were among the Metis who were at old Fort Rae in the Mackenzie District in the early
19th century. According to his scrip application in 1900, Louison Laferte states that he
was born at Great Slave Lake in the Fort Resolution area in 1832.2" He signs his
application with a mark “x” indicating that he could not read or write which is likely due to
the fact that there were no schools in the North during his formative years. According to
his application, Louison states that he lived in Fort Simpson, Fort Wrigley, Fort Norman
and from 1880 he lived at Qld Fort Rae. Louison was the son of Pierre Laferte and

Mary Ann Genereux (Genereuse), an aboriginal woman of Cree heritage.

Pierre Laferte and his brother, who was also named Louis Laferte, are reputed to have
worked in the Mackenzie District in the 1820's. In this English speaking part of the
country, Laferte, a French name, was changed and is now spelt Lafferty.” Marie
Lesperance was either the sister or daughter of guide Alexis Lesperance (1796-1890)
who is known to historians as one of the famous boat brigade leaders of the period.
Alexis Lesperance travelled the Northern waterways and networks from Red River to
Portage La Loche with connections on to the Mackenzie in the early to mid 19"
century®. This establishes and reinforces the historical record that the Metis were a
people in motion. In an age before powered boats the Metis travelled great distances

along the Northern waterways from the Mackenzie-Great Slave to the Red River country

2INAC Scrip Application, July 25%, 1900, RG 15, Dept. of the Interior. Also available at Fort Providence
Metis Council Office.

2 LeMouel, Jean, Bouvier and Laferte, Early Pioneers of the Mackenzie, 1973 p. 7.

2 Payment, Diane, Lesperance and Laferte (now Lafferty) families, Narrative History of Metis of the
Mackenzie Basin. Chapter 5 Metis People in Motion: From Red River to the Mackenzie Basin 1997 p. 13.
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and return.

Oral history indicates that some of the Mackenzie District Metis who were involved in
both the wage economy as well as making a living from the land, believed in the concept
of a freemen society. In the past, Metis elders sometimes referred to “les gens libre"
which is a Michif or Metis French expression meaning “a free people or freemen.” It is
also known, that the Metis people in the North had a long tradition of being independent
and earning their own way from both wage employment and the traditional pursuits of
hunting, trapping, fishing and gathering. It appears as though Canadian officials may
have had this wage economy in mind, when framing scrip policy for the Mackenzie
District. Treaty Commissioner Henry A. Conroy made the following observation and

recommendation leading up to the implementation of treaty 11 scrip.

At present, | do not think that there are more than fifteen families who will
have to be dealt with by scrip, and these are old and respected families in
that country, who could not be expected to enter into treaty. | might even

say that some of these families are historic.
The names include the following:
Camsells (sic), Gaudet, Beauvieu (Beaulieu?), Lafferty, McDonald, Smith

and Firth, These families and possible some others will have to be given

scrip.?

# Coates and Morrison Treaty 11 Research Report.
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It becomes apparent that the application of scrip as a policy intended for the Metis was

pre-ordained based on the way some of the Metis people were making their living.

Alexis Lafferty was the ninth child in a family of fourteen. Although, the children of
Louison Lanoix dit Laferte are said to be amongst the first students to attend the Sacred
Heart School in Fort Providence after it was established by the Grey Nuns in 1867%, the
extent of Alexis’ formal education is not known, He may have attended the convent

school as a boarder for a short time.

1870's - Children of ... Lanoix called Laferte families. [Children often

attended school seasonally or irregularly, rarely more than a few years].®

Itis more likely that Alexis’ education would have been based on traditional knowledge
and practical skills which he was taught at home. Throughout his life, Alexis served as
an interpreter, guide, hunter, trapper who worked for trading companies and the
government. He relied on his knowledge of the land, aboriginal languages and people of
the area. The following brief description of Alexis Lafferty was included in the pictorial
history of the Metis of the Northwest Territories entitled: Our Metis Heritage....A
Portrayal.

3 Transcripts of documents, Names of first students at Sacre-Coeur School in Providence 1867. Archives
des Soeurs Grises de Montreal (Grey Nuns) Archives of the Oblats de Marie-Immmaculee. Letter from Dianc
Payment, Parks Canada Historian, December 5%, 2001.

*ibid.
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“Alexis worked for the Hudson's Bay Company during which time he made
three trips with the York Boat to Lac La Loche. Later he traded for Hislop
and Nagle and went on to “manage"? the stores at Fort Resolution,
Wrigley and then Simpson in1903. He stayed with Hislop and Nagle until
they sold out to Northern Traders. An additional six years was spent as

Fire Ranger from Simpson to Providence."®

During Alexis’ lifetime, the fur trade companies in the North were undergoing changes
and new independent companies were being established as competition to the long

standing Hudson’s Bay Company.

Early white free traders included George Martin, Colin Fraser, Dick Secord,
as well as the more famous Jim Hislop and Ed Nagle. When Hislop and
Nagle decided to establish a permanent post in 1893, they engaged Alexis
Lafferty from Fort Rae. Lafferty went on to act as an interpreter for Nagle

at Resolution.?

Jim Hislop and Ed Nagle were well known independent traders who operated trading

7 1t is submitted by the author that due to ambiguity surrounding Alexis Lafferty’s formal education is not
likely that conventional management principles and practices would apply here. Therefore the term “manage” in the
above context is laymen’s terminology. It likely refers to interpreting or communicating with aboriginal customers
in the exchange of furs etc. as was common during the period.

% Our Metis Heritage ...a portrayal, Editor, Joanne Overvold, Produced by the Metis Association of the
Northwest Territories. 1976,

2 Picking Up the Threads, History of the Metis in the Mackenzie Basin. Northern Metis and the Fur Trade,
Jennifer L. Bellman & Christopher C. Hanks. Hanks Heritage Consulting. p 38.
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posts in the Mackenzie-Great Slave Lake area from 1893 to 1913. During this period
they operated posts at Fort Rae, Fort Resolution, Fort Providence, Fort Simpson,
Wrigley, Fort Good Hope, Fort Norman [Tulita] as well as in the Fort Liard and Fort
Nelson area. Their company Hislop and Nagle has been characterized as one of the
most successful independent trading companies in the North of the period. In 1913,
Hislop and Nagle sold their business operations to Northern traders. According to the
biography of Ed Nagle, Mr. Nagle became friends with Richard Secord in 1882 in
Edmonton. Apparently, this would be the beginning of a long business association,

trading network and friendship.

. Scrip Application Process:

In order to be given scrip Metis were expected to apply for it. Accordingly, those who
participated appeared before the Half-breed commissioners to provide personal
information, which included; the names of their parents, heritage or tribal origin of their
families, occupation, place of residence, marital status, children living and deceased.
This information was recorded by the members of the Half-breed commission, It should
be noted that in many cases, interpreters were required as the early Metis on the
prairies and the Mackenzie District Metis primarily spoke Michif, (Metis French) and
aboriginal languages. The Half-breed commissioners usually communicated in English.
At the time of the Treaty 8 - Athabasca Half-breed Cornmission, claimants were to
indicate whether they were applying for land or money scrip. The author has observed
that; in the case of treaty 11 where land scrip was not offered: the standard answer
written on the application form is usually; “I wish to be treated the same as other half-

breeds have been treated.” The application is signed by the Commissioner along with
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two witnesses in order to verify the correctness of the information provided in the
application. The Metis claimants then had to wait until the applications were processed
by the Department of the Interior. During this period the applications were cross
referenced to make sure that the applicants were eligible, and to be sure that they were
not being paid twice or had been taken under treaty. On this basis the Department either

allowed or disallowed applications.

On July 26", 1800, at the time of treaty 8 adhesions, Alexis Lafferty and his wife applied
for money scrip at Fort Resolution where they were living at the time. Their applications
were completed by clerks or representatives of the Athabasca Half-breed Commission
and submitted to Half-breed Commissioner Macrae for furtherance. On his application
for scrip in 1900, Alexis Lafferty indicates that he lived at Fort Rae, Fort Simpson, Fort
Providence and at Fort Resolution from 1882 to 1900. He had married Eliza Mclver
(also spelt Mclvor on some records} at Fort Providence in 1887. Together they raised
eight children; Napoleon, Celine, Harriet, Francois - Henri, James, Philip, Jonas and
Marie Rose. Three of their other children had died as infants due to illness which was
not uncommeon at that time. The three youngest children in the family, Philip, Jonas and
Marie Rose were born after the issuance of scrip in 1900. Consequently they were
deemed not eligible to participate in the scrip program and are not referenced further in

this report or historical documents related specifically to Alexis Lafferty’s case.

Alexis’ wife, Eliza Mclver was of Dene (Slavey®™) and Metis descent. Eliza's mother was

% Bliza Mclver-Lafferty’s Scrip Application, National Archives, File 1169116 RG15, D-I1-1, Volume 986,

31~



Marie [Tsankon] Sonte from the Fort Simpson area.® Her father John Mclver was a
Metis of Scottish/irish descent who originally came North from Riviere Rouge [Red River]
in the employ of the Hudson's Bay Company in 1865%. In Hudson’s Bay Company
abstracts, John Mclver is listed as a contract employee of that year holding the position
of middleman.®® John Mclver and Marie [Tsankon] Sonte were martied in the Sacred
Heart Church at Fort Simpson in 1870 by Father E. Grouard, omi**, Witnesses to this
marriage were, Baptiste Lamalice and Joseph Savoyard. Eliza was the only daughter of
John Mclver and Marie [Tsankon] Sonte who remained in the Mackenzie District as she
had married and had her own family. According to family history, her brothers and
sisters left with their father John Mclver and their mother Marie to the south when he

retired from the Hudson's Bay.*

On July 8th, 1902 the Lafferty family received their fourteen money scrip certificates as
referenced below. These fourteen money scrip certificates were issued to Alexis, his

wife, Eliza and their five minor children as follows:

3! Michaud, Raymond, Fort Simpson, Genealogy research on the people of Fort Simpson, Sacred Heart
Parish Records - Genealogy Research by Father Posset, omi, Fort Simpson 1977. Copies available at Fort
Providence Metis Council Office.

3 Marriage Certificate of John Mclver and Marie Sonte, Records Diocese of Mackenzie, Yellowknife,
N.W.T. Copy available at Fort Providence Metis Qffice,

33 The genealogy of the First Metis Nation, Compiled by D.N. Sprague and R.P. Frye, Table 3., 1983,
A4 Marriage certificate of John Mclver and Marie Sonte, Diocese of Mackenzie, Yellowknife, N.W.T.

35 Posset’s Genealogy Research 1977,
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Value: $ 160.00 Value: $ 80.00

Name: Certificate No. Certificate No.
Eliza A 12790 A 4421
Alexis A 12791 A 4422
Napoleon A 12792 A 4423
Celine A 12793 A 4424
Harriet A 12794 A 4425
Francois Henri A 12795 A 4426
James A 12796 A 4427

Evidence of this is provided in the form of signed receipts® signed by Alexis and his wife
Eliza. |t should be noted that Eliza Mclver-Lafferty signs by making a mark “x” on both
her application and her receipts indicating that she could not read or write. Refer to
illustrations no. 4 and no. 5 for further detail. As the head of the family, Alexis actually

signs his name for his scrip and those of his minor children.

It is not known exactly what took place with the Lafferty family's scrip notes between
July, 1902 and April 1908, as there is a gap in the historical record. As we will see later,
it appears that the family may have parted with these scrips in an unacceptable way.
We will address specific requests which were subsequently filed with the government
surrounding these particular scrip certificates. In addition, we will highlight appeals,
claims, grievances and allegations associated with the issuance of scrip in the treaty 8

area. The related correspondence included with this file provide some clues as to the

3% Lafferty’s Scrip Applications and Correspondence, National Archives, File 1169116 RG15, D-1I-1,
Volume 986. Copies available at the Fort Providence Metis Council Office.
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events which took place. We will start with the following.

On April 4%, 1906 the law firm Short, Cross, & Biggar based in Edmonton write to the
Department of the Interior on behalf of Mr. Edmund Nagle. They ask to have five of Mr,
Nagle's scrip notes replaced as these had been inadvertently destroyed eighteen
months preceding that date. The law firm indicates that Edmund Nagle desires to have
land scrip certificates substituted for his lost money sciip notes. They offer to enter into a
bond with “sufficient sureties guaranteeing the government against the reappearance at
any time of those lost.”* Included with the letter is an affidavit dated April 2", 1906. This
is signed by Mr. Nagle and Mr, Biggar who also serves as Commissioner [of Oaths] in

and for the NNW.T. The following is an excerpt from the affidavit.

2. That in or about the year 1902 there were issued scrip notes to the
members of the family of Alexis Lafferty, Eliza Lafferty, his wife, Napoleon
Lafferty and Francois Lafferty, his sons, and Saline [Celine] and Harriet

Lafferty, his daughters.

3. That the said scrip notes were purchased by the said firm of Hyslop &
Nagle, and five of them became my property, the remaining one

becoming the property of my partner John Hislop.

37 Lafferty’s Scrip Applications and Correspondence, National Archives, File 1169116 RG135, D-1I-1,
Volume 986. Copies available at Fort Providence Metis Council Office.
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4. | do not know which of the notes it was which was not mine.*®

On April 4", 1906 John A. McDougall and Richard Secord both merchants of Edmonton
make an oath that they are the proposed sureties on behalf of Edmund Nagle in a

$ 1,200.00 bond. On an additional bond document, Ed Nagle, Richard Secord, and
John A. McDougall jointly sign to guarantee the bond. It should be observed that in her
report, entitied “In a Class of their Own", A Study of Treaty Ten Metis Scrip Speculators,
Northern Saskatchewan, 1906-1912, University of Alberta student Alexandra Robles,
identified the law firm, Short Cross and Bigger as having been associated with the
business class who were dealing in Metis scrip. In her report Short, Cross and Biggar are
listed as being owners of Metis scrip coupons obtained from Half-breeds in Northwest

Saskatchewan at the time of treaty 10.

The following citation taken from the National Archives website on scrip provides a
plausible reason as to why Edmund Nagle likely wanted to exchange the lost or

destroyed money scrip notes for land scrip certificates.

Interestingly, when the settlement process was in full swing and land
values had increased, the amount granted to Metis families in money scrip
remained frozen at the original award levels. A Metis awarded money scrip
in the 1870's had the potential of purchasing a reasonable size homestead,
but later in the 1920's when land prices had doubled and tripled, the same

scrip note would only purchase a homestead that was a fraction of the

Blhid.
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size.®

On June 4", 1906, Chief Clerk N.O.Cote, who was a senior official of the Department of
the Interior, writes an internal memorandum to Deputy Minister of the Interior, W. W,
Cory explaining procedures for dealing with cases of lost money scrip. He advises that
more complete descriptions of the lost scrip notes will be required along with a bond of
indemnity for twice the value of the notes. This is to be prepared by the Department of
Justice as required in the case of a lost cheque but he doubts very much that the
Department would advise to treat lost money scrip in the same manner as a lost cheque,
the former being payable to the bearer. At that point, Mr. Cote’s memo along with the
hand written notes of the department’s accountant indicate, that the following Lafferty

scrip notes had been redeemed. See illustration no. 6.

Name: Scrip Note: Value: Location where redeemed
Napoleon Lafferty 4423 $80.00  Calgary Dominion Land Office
Celine Lafferty 4424 $80.00 ted Deer

Harriet Lafferty 12794 $160.00 Calgary Dominion Land Office
Francois-Henri Lafferty 12795 $160.00 Calgary Dominion Land Office

Subsequent to this on June 26™, 1908, the Minister of the Interior Frank Oliver writes to
Short Cross and Biggar indicating that money scrip cannot be replaced with land scrip.
His correspondence provides a list of the fourteen original money scrip notes and their

corresponding numbers which had been issued to the family of Alexis Lafferty. Although

% National Archives of Canada website on Metis scrip. www.archives.ca/02/0201200103/10_e.html
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this list includes the four scrip notes which had been redeemed, it does not indicate who
was in possession of these particular notes when they were redeemed. He closes his
letter by saying that “Ten of the these have not been redeemed and the puzzle is to

know which of the ten are the five which have been destroyed.”

Short Cross and Biggar then write to Minister Frank Oliver on July 7™, 1906 enclosing a
bond for $ 1200.00 which would become operative upon any more than five of the
remaining scrips being redeemed. On July 16™, 1908, Senior Official N.O. Cote issues
another internal memo to Frank Oliver's private secretary J.B. Harkin insisting that more

details on the lost scrip notes are provided before they can possibly be replaced.

From April 4th, 1906 to April 1%, 1908 there is a series of written exchanges between
Short, Cross and Biggar and the Department of the Interior concerning the replacement
of the Lafferty scrip notes which had been lost or destroyed by Edmund Nagle. Based on
the file correspondence and the series of exchanges, it appears that Federal Crown
officials were more concerned about protecting the Department from issuing additional
scrip without accounting for the ones alleged to have been lost or destroyed. Atthe
onset of the exchange, Federal Officials accept without question, the fact that Edmund
Nagle had possession of Half-breed money scrip notes. There is no apparent concern or
regard for the fact that this scrip was no longer in the hands of the aboriginal people and
the purpose it was intended for. The ongoing correspondence and interaction appears fo
take place without consideration for the Metis interest, or their rights as an aboriginal
people. In their July 24™, 1906 letter, Short, Cross and Biggar end their correspondence

with the following;
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It seemed to us that possibly under those circurnstances, there could not
be much danger in allowing Mr. Nagle credit for $ 800.00 money scrip. The
mere fact that it could not be at the present time allocated to any particular
one of the Lafferty’s or any particular money scrips already issued, should

not present any great difficulty.®

The Department of the Interior also appears to be very accommodating to the lawyers
acting on behalf of Mr. Nagle. At almost every stage, Chief Clerk N.O. Cote writes an
internal memo to various officials within the Department providing instructions as to what
action is to be taken. Mr. Cote was one of the pivotal departmental officials overseeing
the scrip program. The official response which is then provided by the Department is
usually based on his internal memorandum. Where Mr. Nagle and his lawyers provide
inaccurate information or a lack of information, the Department furnishes the information
required along with necessary action that will satisfy the department in order to facilitate
Mr. Nagle’s needs. Edmund Nagle and his lawyers then provide the information the
Department asks for. This exchange is very telling in terms of the conflict in which the
Department of the Interior was operating. On one hand the Department was charged
with issuing land to non aboriginal settlers for the “purpose of Dominion” in accordance
with Canadian policy. On the other hand, the very same department was also charged
with the responsibility of dealing with the aboriginal interests of the Metis people. It
becomes apparent that it was almost impossible for the Department of the Interior to
carry out their mandate fairly as it dealt with two very different and conflicting interests.

As a result, the interests of the disadvantaged position of the Metis were not justly

@ National Archives of Canada Department of Interior Dominion Lands Branch File; 1169601,
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served or handled properly.

Finally, on March 25", 1908 the Department of the Interior ends up sending eight
replacement scrip notes which Mr. Nagle was seeking. As previously referenced, three
of the other Lafferty scrip notes had been redeemed at the Calgary Land office and one
has a notation referenced to Red Deer. The files do not indicate who was in possession
of these particular scrip notes when these were redeemed. This left two of the original
fourteen scrip certificates unaccounted for. Interestingly, Mr. Nagle did not request the
scrip notes A 12790 $ 160.00 and A4421 for $ 80.00 which had been issued to Eliza
Lafferty. It can be assumed that these notes had gone to James Hislop as indicated in

Mr. Nagle's initial affidavit.

On November 11", 1920 approximately eighteen years after parting with his family’s
scrip certificates, Alexis Lafferty, and a man by the name of Phillip Atkinson presented a
petition to The Right Honourable Arthur Meighen, Prime Minister of Canada. They were
assisted in writing the petition by a friend John Coleman Calhoun, who was the owner of
the King Edward Hotel in Edmonton, Calhoun was a member of the Independent Order
of the Odd Fellows. He also served as an Alderman in Edmonton from 1906 to 1908.

The following was contained in the petition brought forward:

To The Right Honourable , Arthur Meighen,

Prime Minister of Canada

The Petition of Philip Atkinson and Alexa [Alexis] Lafferty humbly sheweth:
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1. That your petitioners are persons of mixed white and
Indian blood, residing at or near Fort Resolution, in the
Province of Alberta, and that your petitioners have heen
delegated by a number of persons of mixed white and Indian
blood, residing in the environments of Fort Resolution, Fort
Smith and Fort Chippewyan, [Chipewyan], seeking re-dress
for what they believe to be a real grievance and to ask that

justice be done,

2. That during the years 1900 to 1903 His Majesty as
represented by the Minister of the Interior for Canada caused
to be allotted and issued to persons of mixed white and
Indian blood, certificates entitling the person named in such
certificates to select, fyle [sic] upon and become the
registered land owner of two hundred and forty acres of land,
the property of the Dominion of Canada, and situated in the
Northwest Territory and open for homestead entry, which

said certificates are known as half-breed script [sic].

3. That unscrupulous speculators followed in the wake of the
Commission entrusted by the Honourable the Minister of the
Interior with delivery of such certificates or half breed script
[scrip], and the taking shameful if not even criminal
advantage of the illitracy [illiteracy] and ignorance of the half

breed, purchased such script [scrip] from the holders, paying
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therefor a proportion of the agreed purchase price, and
agreeing to pay the balance, together with the expenses of
the vendor in fravelling to and from the Land office at such
time as the vendor might be called upon by the purchaser to
come to a Dominion Land office and fyle [file] upon the parcel

of land located and selected by the purchaser.

4. Many of the unscrupulous purchasers instead of bringing
the vendor to the Land office and paying him or her the
expenses of such a trip together with the balance of the
agreed purchase price, by fraud, perjury, subornation or
perjury and forgery procured other perscns to appear at that
land office and represent themselves to be the persons
named in the script [scrip], and to fyle [file] upon the lands
selected or located by the purchaser, and to forge the name
of the real vendor to transfers and other documents in
connection therewith, thereby committing a fraud upon His

Majesty’'s Government, and a fraud upon the vendor.

5. That in the North country in the neighborhood of Forts
Resolution, Smith and Chippewyan [sic] there are several
hundred half breeds who have been defrauded and with
respect to whose scripts [sic] His Majesty's Government has

been defrauded.
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And your Petitioners pray that a commission be appointed to
enquire into and report upon all fylings [filings] upon
Government lands by means of half breed script, [sic], and to
cause to punish all persons who may be found to be guilty of
fraud or criminal conspiracy, or any other offence, with
respect to such fyling [sic], and to procure compensation and
redress for those of His Majesty's subjects of mixed white
and Indian blood who may have been victims of such frauds

or conspiracies. *!

The petitioners had faith in the integrity of the government to protect their interests. On
this basis were asking to have action taken to ensure that justice was served for the
Metis and in the name of His Majesty's dominion government. They indicated how
speculators were committing fraud by impersonating Metis claimants in land offices at
locations far away from the homes of the Northern Metis claimants. On November 26"
1920 an internal memorandum is written by Acting Controller, Gliddon to W.W. Cory,
Deputy Minister of the Interior. The memo makes reference to other Metis claims and
grievances which resulted in previous court cases which were brought forward by two
Metis by the name of Joseph L’Hirondelle and Antoine L'Hirondelle. Both of these cases
ended up being dismissed by the court in 1916. According to the correspondence, the

Department appears reluctant to take the petitioners’ claims to another level in the form

of an investigation. Mr. Gliddon provided the following recommendation:

#! Provincial Archives of Alberta » 68,205/24 (Petition given to Prime Minister Arthur Meighen by J.C.
Calhoun, Nov. 11, 1920 on behalf of Alexis Lafferty and Philipp Atkinson).
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Many of the Scrip Notes were located and the patents issued nearly 20
years ago. Many of the titles have passed through several hands and to
appoint a Commission now to investigate these locations would in my
apinion, be very injudicious and the only effect would be to cast a doubt
upon and cloud the title to thousands of acres of land without any resulting

benefit.*2

The Controller of the Department of the Interior closed his December 17" 1920 letter of
reply to the petitioners by indicating that any cases should go through the proper courts.
Based on the government’s instruction and advice, Mr. John Graham a half-breed
returned soldier from Wabasca, Alberta initiated a case of fraud on April 5%, 1921
concerning the fraudulent location of Metis land scrip. The case was against Mr. Richard
Secord in the impersonation of Elizabeth Hislop. Elizabeth Hislop of Fort Resolution,

N.W.T. was the wife of trader James Hislop.

The preliminary hearing for the case took place in Edmionton Provingial Police Court on
April 5" and 15", 1921. According to the transcripts at this hearing, Richard Secord had
asked a Metis woman by the name Flora Taylor (nee Ladoucer) to present herself at the
Dominion Lands office to stand in for a dead woman by the name of Elizabeth Heaslip
[Hislop]. Before she did this Secord gave her a shawl to put over her head and

", 1

instructed her to make an “x" when he beckoned her to do 50, She went with him to the
lands office where Mr. Secord indicated to the lands official that she was Elizabeth

Hislop. Later on she asked him why he wanted her to make an “x” when she was able to

“ NAC, RG15, Vol. 1142, file 4448060 (Dept. Interior Internal Memo Nov, 26, 1920).
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sign her own name. He replied by saying that this was the only way we can obtain scrip
for those who have died. The preliminary hearing transcript testimony indicated that
during this time in 1903, Elizabeth Hislop was alive and had remained in Fort Rae,
N.W.T. and could not have possibly presented herself at an Edmonton land office to

locate her scrip.

The fact that Mr. Secord was in possession of land scrip which was originally issued to
Mrs. Elizabeth Hislop (nee Houle), a Metis of the Fort Resolution area also suggests that
scrip speculation and irregularities had reached the Mackenzie District at the time of
treaty 8 adhesions. Mr. Richard Secord did not stand trial as the charges were dropped
against him when an amendment was made to the Criminal Code of Canada in June of
1921. This amendment applied to section 1140 of the Criminal Code and subjected the
fraudulent location of land scrip to a three year statute of limitation. In his November
11™", 1921 letter open to all Canadians Mr. J.C. Calhoun provides insight and perspective
on his view of events which took place concerning Metis rights and their treatment by

Canadian officials representing the Crown. Refer to illustration no. 7 for additional detail.

In a book entitled; The Life and times of Richard Secord, Mr. Secord is touted as; A
Builder of the Northwest. This biography, written in 1981, was coordinated and partially

written by his son Richard Y. Secord.

in 1899, Richard served a term on the Edmonton Town Coungcil, and from
1902 to 1904 was an active member of the North West Territories
Legislature, sitting in Regina. However his only attempt to run for

Parliament, in 1904, he was decisively defeated by another dynamic
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Edmontonian, Frank Oliver.*?

Richard Y. Secord served on the National Historic Site and Monuments Board of
Canada from 1959 to 1967. |n later'years a mountain was named after his father

Richard Secord Sr.

Mount Secord

Named in 1981 by the Governments of Alberta and British Columbia and
the Canadian permanent Committee on Geographical Names to
commemorate the contributions made by Richard Secord (1860-1935, a

prominent Edmonton pioneer, to the development of Western Canada.*

Although Richard Secord Sr. was a prominent Edmonton businessman and politician
who is held in high regard by some, it is also known that he was a scrip speculator.
Richard Secord's activities have been linked with the business elites and syndicates who
were exploiting the Metis people. He later became a millionaire. Mr. Secord’s wealth
and connections with the business elites gave him influence with some of his friends and
associates who later became officials at the highest levels in the Canadian Government,

Here is an excerpt from his biography:

In 1899 it was decided that a further disbursement should be made to

Metis in Athabasca District as the Indians had just agreed to treaty and

# Secord Richard Jr. A Builder of the Northwest, The Life znd Times of Richard Secord. 1981, p. vi
* Secord Richard Jr. A Builder of the Northwest, The Life and Times of Richard Secord. 1981, p 178.
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reservation rights. In Ottawa there was some pressure to prohibit the
selling of this scrip without legal aid. in 1899 allotment of scrip that drew

the attention the particular attention of McDougall and Secord.*

Another possible reason McDougall & Secord decided to invest so heavily
in Northern scrip was the fact that so many Metis were in debf to Richard.
So eager was Richard to begin negotiations that he joined the Government
Commissioners who were distributing scrip on their Northern tour, His first
purchase was made on 25 September. Over the next several months, his
scrip buying expeditions were undertaken with as much frequency and
alacrity as his earlier fur buying trips. Accompanied by his accountant, F.E.
Moroney and his driver, Lawrence Rye, he would stuff his satchels full of
$5.00 and $ 10.00 bills and set out by democrat, to deal with the Metis
personally. Through Lac La Biche, Fort Chipewyan, Grouard, Lesser Slave
Lake, Peace River and Grande Prairie Richard purchased land
entittements at a frantic pace, often travelling on “on the heels of the scrip
commissioners”. By the summer of 1902, he had established himself as
the largest scrip buyer north of Edmonton. At the time he and McDougall
owned 47,000 acres of scrip valued at $ 2.75 an acre. The upshot of the
speculation, along with continuing success in the fur, freighting and
mercantile businesses was that McDougall and Secord were soon
millionaires, and probably the richest men in Edmonton. Their wealth

brought its share of controversy, and in later years several litigations would

45Secord, Richard, Y. A Builder of the Northwest, This Life and Times of Richard Secord,

1981, p. 78.
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be instituted concerning earlier purchases of scrip. However McDougall &
Secord were never convicted of wrong doing, znd as the years passed the

prestige of the partnership increased with its prosperity.*®

In 1816, Mr. Secord took a business and vacation trip to the United States, Ottawa, and

England. Here is a passage from his biography:

He now went to Ottawa to have business meetings with his political
associates. Upon arrival there he went {o see R.B. Bennett, K.C., the
former M.L.A, for Calgary, and now an M.P. for Calgary. Bennett was
serving in the position of Director General National Service at the time. It
was to be another fourteen years until he became Prime Minister. He and
Richard saw eye to eye on most political issues - they were both
Conservatives. Additionally, they shared an interest in the C.P.R. and
were of the same religious faith; consequently, they had much in common
from which they built such straightforward assistance as to how and where
Richard could get a passport. On the more serious side, he recorded that
R.B. Bennett gave him some letters, his diary entry for 20" April, 1916
reads in part, “...saw Richard Bennett who gave me letters to Sir George
Perley, Major-General Carson and Sir Max Aiken” (later to become Lord

Beaverbrook). What these letters contained we will never know. ¥

46Secord, Richard, Y. A Builder of the Northwest, This Life and Times of Richard Secord.
1981, p. 79.

“7 Ibid. p. 152
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The above illustrates the close affiliation and association Mr. Secord had with Ministers

and members of the Canadian Parliament.

Research suggests that the Canadian government knew about the unscrupulous
activities of scrip hunters also known as scrip speculators who were effectively robbing
the Half-breeds of their entitlements on the prairies. Although this was the case,
apparently the scrip Commissioners seemed to encourage the sale of scrip and land as
opposed to protecting the Metis’ interests in land. By implication and inference, it is
submitted that there are strong indications of this which is further reinforced and brought
outin the recent Benoit v. Canada case testimony of treaty talks at Lesser Slave Lake in

1899. These inferences are indicated below.

All whether settled or not, will be given scrip for land to the value of

$ 240.00, that is, all born up to the date of signing the treaty. They can
sell that scrip, that is, all of you can do so. (emphasis by the author)
They can take, if they like, instead of this scrip for 240 acres, lands where
they like. After they have located their land, and got their title, they can live
on it or sell part, or the whole of it, as they please, but cannot sell the scrip.
They must locate their land, and get their title before selling.“®

(emphasis by the author)

It is not known exactly how Ed Nagle obtained possession of most of the Lafferty family's

® Transcripts, Benoit v. Her Majesty and the Attorney General of the Province of Alberta. March 7™,
2002 pp58-59.
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scrip certificates. In his correspondence to the government Mr. Nagle indicates that he
purchased these scrip notes from the Lafferty family with the remaining certificates going
to his partner James Hislop. According to family history and written publications, Alexis
Lafferty was an employee of Hislop and Nagle for a period of time. Hislop and Nagle
may have offered him money for his scrip certificates. Another possible scenario is,
Alexis may have been in debt at the Hislop and Nagle trading post and he may have
been offered some goods in lieu of the debt for these papers or perhaps we was given
additional credit at the post for goods. As there are no known written records, we will
likely never determine with certainty the transaction or transactions which took place
between Ed Nagle, James Hislop and Alexis Lafferty concerning the Lafferty family’s

scrip notes.

Ed Nagle's biography implies or hints at the fact that he was also involved in obtaining
scrip. It also makes reference to Mr. Secord’s exploitation of the Metis in Northern

Alberta,

Secord and his associates did not follow the Half-breed Commission to
Fort Resolution in 1800. Yet although their business might have profited
from it, there is little evidence to suggest that either Hislop or Nagle

seriously exploited the opportunity for scrip speculation.

There is some documented oral history that there were scrip hunters or speculators at

work in Fort Resolution when money scrip certificates were issued. In his highly

49Zinovich, Jordon, Battling the Bay, The Turn of the Century Adventures of Fur Trader Ed Nagle, 1992,
p. 180.
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acclaimed book entitled; As Long As This Land Shall lLast, Historian Rene Fumoleau

documents the following:

At Fort Resolution as everywhere else, the Treaty drove an official wedge
between Indian and Metis. The payment in full of $ 240.00 was made in

the form of scrip, and profited the Metis very little.

Johnny Beaulieu: (The Treaty Officials) told us that the Treaty Indians and
the Metis were on different terms as far as Treaty was concerned - They
said that the Metis will get a scrip......After the treaty was signed, they
passed out all the money and my father got a scrip. We did not know what
it was or how much it was worth. There was a trader here, and he kept
after my father to sell the scrip to him, so my father did, for seventy five

dollars.....%°

Angus Beaulieu: They gave scrip paper to half-breeds. We didn’t know
what those were about either, but we took it. There was a trader, Hislop

and Nagle, who gave the scrip money , $ 75.00 to the half-breeds.*

The author submits that by their association with Richard Secord, both Ed Nagle and his
partner James Hislop became linked to the scrip syndicates and a certain business class

in the south who were dealing in scrip issued to the Metis people on the prairies. This

50Fumoleau, Rene, As Long as this Land Shall Last, 1973, p 99.

Sbid.
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exploitation penetrated the North and extended into the Mackenzie District via the

business networks and associations between businessmen such as Edmund Nagle,

James Hislop and Richard Secord.

Current research analysis indicates that the story of scrip is only now beginning to
emerge in terms of the larger picture. Land and money scrip coupons issued in the
prairie provinces are said to have been subject to fraud and abuse. This is well
documented and becoming more generally known. Alexis Lafferty's appeals to Ottawa
on behalf of the Metis of the North are another testament to the problems arising from
the mal-administration of scrip. Their petition and claims represent a significant episode

in Metis - Canadian history.

Failure of scrip as an Aborigina! policy

It is highly unlikely that the ilfiterate Metis understood what they were giving
up when the they agreed to take scrip. The application procedures
developed by the Department were terribly complicated - amounting to
several acts of Parliament and some 120 orders in council - and were full of

complex legal implications.%

Contemporary Metis view the brief episode whereby their ancestors were dealt with by
scrip commissions as simply representing Canada's recognition of Metis aboriginal

rights. Recent studies and ongoing research surrounding the issuance of scrip indicate

%2 National Archives of Canada website on Metis scrip. www.archives.ca/02/0201200103/10_e.html.
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that legislation and policies pertaining to scrip were convoluted and extremely difficult to
follow through and comprehend. [t is apparent that these policies were implemented
without the early Metis people’s knowledge and understanding. Alexis Lafferty's case is
a microcosm of the larger scrip story. It illustrates how the northern Metis and their
southern compatriots on the prairies were caught up in an intricate web of government
policies, practices and the politics of certain business elites and Canadian capitalists

who profited tremendously from the exploitation of the: Metis people.

At the time of Alexis’ appeals in November 1920, written requests for investigations and
justice, were either down played, or diverted by the government of Canada which
provided generalized answers in reference to other cases. The government appeared
reluctant to take the allegations and claims seriously. Specific answers were not
provided and specific action was not taken to deal with their legitimate grievances. The
Metis petitioners were directed to the proper courts to deal with their case. Apparently
the government seemed confident that any new court cases dealing with scrip would fail
based on the Antoine L'Hirondelle and Joseph L'Hirondelle cases which had been
dismissed in 1916.

In April 1921 the Secord case is brought forward and preliminary hearings are held. It is
a curious thing that while the preliminary hearings were being heard legislation was
being contemplated and subsequently introduced in Parliament to ensure that
prosecutions dealing with Metis scrip fraud would not be successful. The government of
the day was successful in decriminalizing scrip fraud as the bill dealing with section 1140
passed on June 2", 1921. This suggests that scrip fraud was likely decriminalized by

Canada as a result of influential business people who were implicated in such fraud as a
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means of obtaining their wealth. The Royal Commission on Aboriginal peoples makes

the following statement in reference to the 1921 criminal code amendment.

One of the most flagrant acts was the 1921 amendment to the Criminal
Code that imposed a very short time limitation of three years on anyone

wanting to press charges regarding Metis scrip entitlements.5

It is indeed ironic that, the word of the business class was followed when it came to
serving the interests of the business and political elite. Yet the word of the businessman
and former civic politician J.C. Calhoun representing the interests of the Metis people
seems to have been ignored, evaded, or given secondary priority. The story of Alexis
Lafferty draws out what can be termed as the “unofficial discriminatory” policies of
Canadian officials when it came to dealing with certain white influential businessmen
representing their interests on one hand and dealing with the rights of the Metis on the
other. Written exchanges surrounding the case exemplifies the disparity and differential

treatment between the two.

Accordingly, it becomes increasingly difficult for Metis Leaders and for those who have a
broader understanding of the history of scrip to accept that proper answers and
treatment were afforded to the appeals of the Metis people concerning their rights. Itis
therefore submitted that it was the government's duty to protect the interests of the Metis
as an aboriginal people, yet the rights of the Metis were mishandled by inept and

questionable government practices which permitted fraud and abuse to take place.

Sbid. p 15
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Conclusion

July 2002 marks the 100" anniversary since Alexis Lafferty and his family received and
subsequently parted with their scrip certificates in what appears to be a dishonourable
way. Due to the mysterious convoluted nature and history of the scrip program,
grievances remain within the Metis community including present day Deh Cho Metis-
Dene who are the descendants of Alexis and Eliza Lafferty. Furthermore, it is not
confidently believed or accepted that Canadian officials properly and justly dealt with
Alexis Lafferty's case on behalf of the Northern Metis. The many documented problems
and unanswered questions associated with the issuance of scrip to the Metis, basically

casts serious doubt on the legitimacy of this aboriginal policy.

After an exhaustive study, the Royal Commission on Aboriginal Peoples reached the
following conclusions with regard to the Metis' experience in reference to Canadian scrip

policy.

. The Metis were neither consulted about or given an opportunity to negotiate the

terms under which their aboriginal title was to be extinguished.

. Compensation to individuals was substituted for the collective right of aboriginal
title.
. The land allocated was usually located so far from their homes as to be useless to

the Metis, except for the token sums offered by speculators. In some cases they

received only cash grants.
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. The compensation, far from reflecting equitable principles in dealings with

Aboriginal people, was discriminatory. It did not treat Metis as well as Indian

peoples, in that the land provided was unnegotiated, arbitrary, individualized, non-

contagious, far from the recipients’ homes, without protection against non-

aboriginals, and without the other benefits accorded Indians, It did not treat the

Metis affected as well as the Metis of Manitoba, since the latter

had an

opportunity to negotiate the terms of their compensation and were in some cases

offered land grants in addition to the land on which they had already settled.

. Sharp dealing and fraud, to which the government of Canada usually turned a

blind eye, robbed many Metis individuals of the compensation t

. These flaws so basic and so flagrant that they deprived the exti
process of all legitimacy. Even if that were not the case legally,
certainly the case morally. The attempted extinguishment of Me
rights under the Dominion Lands Act cannot be reconciled with
fiduciary obligations, the equitable principles referred to in the R

Order, or the dictates of common decency.%

hey were offered,

nguishment
it was most
tis Aboriginal
the Crown's

upert’s Land

The case of Alexis Lafferty and Philip Atkinson illustrates how the known irregularities

surrounding the scrip program on the prairies had extended into the M

1900. It also clearly exemplifies the conclusions reached by the Royal

* Royal Commission on Aboriginal Peoples, Volume 4 - Perspectives and Realitie
2.4 Conclusions.,

ackenzie District in

Commission.

5, Appendix 5C, Section
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Recent court rulings as in the case of the Powleys of Ontario indicate that the Crown had
a trust like duty when dealing with the historic Metis community in Sault St. Marie. In the
opinion of the author there is little doubt that the Crown's fiduciary duty was breached in
Alexis Lafferty's case and those of his fellow compatriots who raised legitimate

grievances and claims concerning scrip in the Athabasca-Mackenzie.

One hundred years have passed since the treaty 8 adhesions in the Mackenzie District
in Fort Resolution. While on one hand we have First Nations who may feel it is proper to
celebrate this occasion with Canada, regrettably such is not the case for some Canada’s
Northern Metis-Dene descendants who have a sorry history with Canada. These Metis-
First Nations descendants have yet to build a renewed relationship with Canada, based
on reconciliation, proper recognition, equitable treatment and the just settlements of
outstanding aboriginal rights and land claims. Itis the contention of the author that the
honour of the Crown in right of Canada will continue to remain tarnished until such a time
when concrete and meaningful action is taken by Canada to correct these historical
wrongs and injustices. Furthermore, Canada’'s historical treatment of one of its
aboriginal peoples who helped build this country must be properly recognized and

redressed.

We end with this final quote from Alexis Lafferty and Philip Atkinson's petition to Canada,
*And your petitioners will ever pray”. With these profound words written and brought
forward in 1920, it is submitted that Metis' grievances and outstanding rights obligations
which persist from one hundred years ago simply must be reconciled with the honour of
the Crown, in the name of Canadians, their country, common decency, and justice for

the Deh Cho-Mackenzie District Metis.
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Examples of Metis Land Scrip Certificates

- Sovuthern Canada Half Breed Scrip Commmissions
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Example of Money Scrip Coupon /Certificate

Receipts Confirming acceptance
of Scrip Note/Papers

- Trealy B - Alhabasca Half-Breed Commission - Fort Resolution 1800-1802
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Example of Scrip Cash Grant Receipts
- Treaty 11 Commission - Mackenzie River District Half-breeds 1821

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR.
MACKENZIE !'}[VER DISTRICT HALSBREEDS

atting aut of 'the extinguishment of the lndien Ill.[c. in lucncdm e wilh the tornsfel the'
Oredee ia Cnurml ol the 12th Apd, I‘?Zl. and Section'®, 12.44 Geoege W, Chapn

. 324000 ] * Apslcaten Ne. 18 ..
. IR RECEIVED from the Misber of tho, Iufesior tha sum of -5'
Two HUNDRED AND FORTY DOLLARS ($240000) in satiaction’ .
TR Hnrie, BOWTLETR .o e
' ‘ RPN LTS, Badt ty...mirn o, Jenn Baptiﬁ,‘!:; fouvier |

(1923 : -
%ued.tgb"f-'f’ ...... teL illw /
F '-dmr..gr'..u M 2K ‘ , . ] }
WITNESS: " Sighniser ,
: 2 X T ; Lt - * }
—’g:/h}f%hff, : %mkﬂgé"bf/i/%

Source: Natiznal Archlves of Canada

Mustration No. 3

-67-



SR e 4
vl

Y aé-ﬁm/ /? h
SAS AN A %m/m

-

b, Soketie . If' {ywx/,f{ e (/mw{#-.'-

?/(\9,7”‘””&/ ad® 'r.n.(‘ ﬁ&.a-&éwu oo .'.f._:.:._“

ok

L R, LT R T ST e P T P P T TR raava . S SN vavrs

\J - I!(Yn-lh Fopar rarmiemind Ty O Adieent “W lc g ‘..m..-s.o'gm:.,; 4 o $ --md-i--
o Al - .
N f“ Wiacy and whes roererv. bernd oo LAY &kﬂ.,._hm.as?m..m.,uw AT X - RPN

P ‘M://"f % WHiet war ©ha neann of peur feber? ....%&‘afy‘,..,%--—.m...;......................._......................l.“..-.-...u.u -
A ’ .

—t

. N

b - Rt
£ g woad THR carue of Tany tribar tefare Une peveboaet - S2 J, imeivi A, e o N 1eb et benie . ab b pred vad -

- ki

- T TR Wra yrar MU e Hal el re ue n-as«t......-.scdx‘f‘c-e‘.a.m-m..u.. . e NmrETEEE e b b et s b damd b A b
b Wax yenr dotbara WalGBreed vient lAMWe warneT.. %M MH‘QM s aant e rae s AR AL aSes banhabbnt s emanon

o]
LA

Era

£ WlainTars zaw baanirine cacls Tanc airg rug itk § Gl wlaimnng war snder 1K penry o€ 1KY #e bun 130h Jorlpy VITE, Yhen plaon =f fuidofin i 6 4l

.mm-nuu Axta Bl alza e nrserialind A %\AM ﬁu.m .QMLI. - ¥ g h&a&.ﬂh TN

) TP ET ARSI PP

T

%

LR T N R T U naniae aars

B O P P R e L O PP P e PO R

N . . n.'IU‘L-l\ml.-nnrtnﬂcltnml«al‘...-.W-.‘%....M--&%%uh.-ﬂ ................. e s .
¥. T2 encrrsed, Hhen, whraanl |~-im7%ﬂ~m~{,hml%ﬁ?q&°#‘ A 1 me-&%,,ﬂ[—x“,_, .

LT Y SR,

UL Flees snwnnp #17Hd ptrn hore smed 15eleab 2., 0000050 P a raraeatt s cmeRRRILIY . . . e
5, TCHkt are elr numsr, o oF 4ril And raspes of BrrkkaleosT. e ha{amw‘fﬂ‘ 3.
e SRRt Avrin 158 6.0 et \fn...:g;;.,,

s QM... . L %Cf A

"Lw 1 tm 1 ey
L wau srerBe naos :tn-l:n-m!lnmllumqr n.u.un.u 1hacarmsr bt .

Lan B L L L e L T T T S O

[URPRN ¢ SOAPAL W Y] wmw%.b:% .........

Paru, No, LL2 A,

Ilustration No. 4



B e R L L R R T S T LU P P SEdelana FaN

:Il. Do TAG Peudttw cerLifenden b vha Biril Aok by ters af pyes t-\l.h!snl xrn..nq-uiuumom.lrml. bl re ,ﬂ-ﬂ ,,.‘

- T WE\.LMMA.# W&f Gdn. 2.8 PG M’g‘&w..u.cgﬁu

1% w:m-mcurmr«nuhmi x-rum.mr !fn.)llul ariues Crom, L Tl dtndi xhe st »?“r‘ L ﬁm

T Bla bbbt Sbasdtr ) £ETERT ABETT Font tnd a0 1L L S o1 1N SPor (18 - £43148 Sk Im s emmamocas omv ok 4o 32 1 TmEmE 20 5 A 08 st o o

B L T 3 1 O U LN T P T PR

L L T D Y

Imed A FTWRT PRI 2 JORPYORTARL WL NPT S ' Lk o b ’

PP

FUFIAUE FER I m by mr e n e s rn LR b 4 ] Er b b MR el R E M0 AR eSS ANBE TR =g

BT TR A+ A AT e TR Ay et e e i maa e S [T

SUARTIIPEIRIIERALLINE  bo smuesamamesaspanr b rardnd LA IR Ee fanaae s onn,

aeeaemreramay TR EE IRl it 4y 2 s e bt e NG TR AR A Y re §ansb mn s § e m e PR s § LA

. Whatdprey Ltwr Wye zubpe il sl Laget Luzidl, 1 Anmtuiidl Bhiba s To- 5 brrant 114 40r S 14101 r b ipreraaareret i e

Fhy Al pren e rielle b duped £ 08r4p In Mazlbate oo dhe 2, W, Lardtrrdos s commuintien a8 34c Hebd e ed etgdslet . Plvu samaqtenn maremreriane

-
55 Mwatbon mior qareal 1y wi X paa hues Tran eullzd, s4bor ihan 2ear rane pysn ..\...1....9.1..45‘.‘,. averaraa

ARy P T EEY s AE LR ot dn s wamsmmenbm ] hnr ret MR RSP FE

Fee D yL F AN AF el an nn Tndlsna oy [ wez mer perdlrinedc by precs b Tetlanet

L P,

DL Exale werllilos briviiog ure Paur 4oy A pad miny Wi ...,

PR a s e a1 amRRE a s L LR L e e s LSS O S T 5et e v e hamd e s de i e e

. :? ?

LTI PRI PETE R

(T YPITEes

At aaby et

- A e A e s -

Illustration No.4 Cont.

-69-



S aRE

- _..w“hl.n nnmml,
makw anth Coedwedore) amd sy that S wmzlu e ‘given Ly ako d -tmoin cvnr: martentne. so Bolp.

ma Cloxl. . = .
Swarn {oudaatmrmly hatnrs e, AL, w.E..I“."—J','._- . WA < . n&.ﬁ’m...):% 4
RO O WY e _Alkin L& R Y
rdny ... - PR, ) + 39 /f.i’"' W_,.‘A' 0 " f':;;‘_' ‘.
hevlng been Hret voad aved and  axplainet o tha b Al - ' . '
- e N o
. e ?m Jangungzn ta the depoyent, wio W K
}' weeyied puvFaolly to wodorstaed Ly suae, wid B oy ’ N .
gi Uy : N . e .:‘
; M
= A —_, .

ke oatls (oidedared 4l wmy cigy L Xbew, , ., ] vc £ty o e - o wrber Tl 'l‘
miTn oxtle w the correctauen ol e withio wowers, aud A (e fg ﬁu NEWEYS W SHeainnd bumbinee !
IXBHE T Lkl foand 1Y T Fom [ it AL AR ST

e bo verreel, and ose far ne B femnTelcr e conosrnad, I Belleve theny to lme tras and carreit in ovary

A SolaeTived, 1 ¥new thnen

pardenlis  w—o —‘!!«.Llfr..u.«.c, E‘:""& . py R

Kworn facudculased) Iinfore mie, at,,_ '??\-'(‘ ) %y ‘M '% N
N 23T S M REP SRR R o el )
dwy ol . M Al D, S7 )}_’;: - <oy

Baridg bueis it wead  avey Wl eaploinvd in e, ——y :

._.grhg«&ce‘k ....... EARINZES t0 tle Joponent, who ?MA‘;‘_ M .

. - —
seevised] porloutly o HIgRENYA] Lo stuit, eiad bL g

——— - b o em—— e

Prweiiee. ‘//’
LA <, \ .

W L v .
A4 Drcelel haaadfuontis whaa el :701,4_ ﬂm—ow
maks amli et anil ksy chas T Mnow.... uvb,a, Ay ;

y < ey wfm Bou- ]
mada onall tn e oorreatune: nf the widhin nawveery, amil ey #nn frrim :ufﬁu‘a m;«.ms%w_ -1
LA L A Yoy fﬁ.ﬂ.} ? ) av-J. 8 B Tt o b LR T a1 mnbéran:!"ﬁnruf'be

Y10 b eoerout, sud du fae du tbo rempindur e mi, T lsplinve ﬂu-m 10 e trus .1,1|5| \-oﬂ\:ﬂ, m cwﬂy’
PR P T
pertlenier, 3—0 M{, Py %«:ﬂ{ - . A
Freetl: .o 7l
Sworn forrdeslazmly I:\:E.rrn we, al, o ,(_ .y _,’“‘ P u :’iﬂ-’ o : '“ﬁm:-, . _":':H
RO - ST T S R VR I H <

- sy ot ... §t 9*7 A B2 e
' lswimg Teen frwl meed qrer noik arplalped in \Il;?

" N a&g‘.d-é.. solmigangs tn Ehe daponent, wha

Atepigd purreu:ly e undurstznd e sEme, Al i ey

., Prusdman

THustration No. 4 Cont.

-70-



! sy e o

@c;:cwtnt 239§ 01' tlpe gufextox

Feambxo

e o

$aq0 &

-.:‘,....-

Beceiued fpom e Homouradle the -flfr?fﬁ'.’ér‘* Wiz

frtevior, Serip Notes .c"b’ds._o._, \ b o _c."...ﬁ ...amLQ...H; 3 . X
" Wrbo.ao e $8a.00 vespoclivery, fxpied i brctirdancd Bith the xérm:

of wm Oreler i Camml o e\ ‘a“ck .mwr mxaC -

e

Tustration No. 5

71-



L

' 6%ki~;qifﬁakufszAthwfiv——1ﬂw?/q«

s ]

-

| %ﬁi%ﬁ

e |

/4 wFAPGS ff:'/”/éowtszx¢4 2 v”f?/!‘{c?f:'e
i /4 /fl%(;’z. Yé: ¥ sbo /1' b r 2 2 S I.l‘;“‘ﬁ‘:?d
s A ray93 s ;ﬁ/&p A ey aerpy i
: L2 IIGIRT ‘i%w A ser2s™, o po
L2PGEN B ARG A w2 0]
Ar7a758 , #s6s  Ass2) . w oo
Arr2590, % r6e Aswzs, oo

N 287 L
(QJJ'M A.u-.«i.]s analea alill MM\ aleﬂﬂ/ﬁll )

7.-4‘11[&}.«» rE. A 1:.77;,-....42775‘;% Fodot v F ozt
A araf'z*ffn— et '

| Sk

Y

&

3, Dsetp 7y vol
mnior 11495

National! Archives of Canada

Illustration No. 6

-72-



.
I

e/o King Baward Hotel,
Bdmonton, 4lberta,
Wovember 11th, 1921.

Daar Sir:-

1.?35 : le¥ter da-dddrToeced Lo all Canedisne whg belisve
that our "biont’if Honour, tut WetioneY intopwhty and ouy jonal
good viems dhould a% sll times be kept oweet 2nd clesn to all the
world and tg ouraslveus.

_ ,On Moy B7th, 1921, %he Honpurabdle Bir James Tougheed
introduded in Fhe Sanste of Canada Bill No, 138, being & BiLY

Zor the smendment of the Criminal Code, T+ had its FTirst Tending

‘on that date a® Gppears by Heansard Beports Ho. GO Pege 676. The
gsepond resding was had on Msy S0th. Dee Hanmsyd Raporte Ho. 61,
Fags 699. Qn June lu¥, sccording to the Ransard Boports of the
denate Debates, No. 63, fipeh pege, on motion:of Siy James Lougheed
the Senate won{ into- committes on Bill Ho, 133: '

"Iha Honocursdle the Chatrman:-

It i3 moved that ths followlngi Be- inserted
after Section 24 ag 24a, Payagraph ta' of Section
1140 of the Aet i¢ amended by sdding therets the
Tollowing nmub-paragraphs

"{iv) any offence relating to or srising
out of the loestion of land zhich wae prid for in
whole or in part by ecript, or wes granted upon
cortificates ismped to half-byeeda In connection
#ith the extinguishment of Indian tltles.
o'fﬂon,. Hr. LYNQH-BPAUBTCN: Vhat doen a1l thag

mean -
. Sir FAEE LOUGHZER: The intention is
that 1T a prosecution for an offence is not braw
: within three years of the date of ite commission
* then it is proscribed. There ie no Dyovision fok
that in ths Code at preszent,

“Hon. Mr. BOSTOCK: From the reading of the
¢lauen I a1d not gradp what the affence really is.
"Hon. Sir JAMES LOUSHEED: [Thig ¥rings it

into Section 21140 iy the Lode, whieh desld with

the limitation v actions, There hove heen ona o
two canpp brought, golng back fwenty yesrnm, elaim-

ing that fravd woe committed, OFf course, the

evidonop In conpectlion with them wonld have dizappearn~

ed 1cng a.go.
"Ipeficn 842 wag agreed Ho."

The enolessd correspondence will Bhow thet I firast wrote
%o tho Honourshle Arthur Weighen, Primo Mininter of Cansda, eff
Aughut 2nd, 1921, The Prember appsranily mas in ignorance of the
suepAnsnt and the letter wen forwerded to Sir James Lougheod,
Angugt 22rd % again wrote Yhe Premier enclosing a copy of my formeT

- e - ————— - —— - s ar— - [T — .

Illustration No. 7
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Iotter., In enewer to a telegram from me of Sepbember 1L3th the
Premier writes that he caunot do moss than refer the mather to the
Department of Justice, the Minister of which handlsd the Legislation.

. The fact of the matter is that whils the Minister of Justice,
the Honourable Mr, Dougherty, did bandle the Bill in the Hones of
Oommens, 1t origingted iy the Senate end was fathersd by Si¥ Jomss
Lougheed, Hotwithstending this we find the Prime Minisbter letting
ant Nr, Boughwty- agd meking Sir Jamee Loughesd Windsber of the -
Interior and appoit¥ad me Minister of Justies Sir_Jamss Louvgheed 'a
law pertner, Mr. R, B, Bennett. The Pripe Minister being, &% ho
gayd, ignorant of the Bill and its sffect, must have besn deceived
by hig present Minister of ths Interior, :

The onsotment of thisg psrticuler pisce of iniquitous lsgislation
hsd the effect of protecting a nuwber of reputed milliconaires, the
foundetion of yhose prement wesith wap builb upon scandslous Frouds
committed agsinet the Halfbresds to whom 1snd seript had been issued
by a Government whoes duty it was to guard @nd protect them,

A8 one pertienlsr Bdmonton millionsire hnd alresdy been com-
mitted for triml on & charge of nttering s forged dscument in’ -
Frocuring title to lend under Halfbreed script,end a8 the amsndiment’
probibits the proceeding with the trial to spcertain hiB guilt or
innocenca upon & charge which hae b meximum penality of life imprison~
men®, one need net seek far for the motlve bahind the smendment.

The passing of this amendment 18 & scendsl which will stink
in the nostrile of all decent people with the ptanch £rom thes rotting
and devaying of the honour énd integrity of a Government, .

& Government hap deliberately stepped in and shayed the haond
of Justica for the protection of wealthy friendm of that Government,
who, if they by innsvcent, would have nothing %o fear from our Jullgas
whoge Benss of parsonal snd public honour is apperently infinitely
higher then thg% of the Government which appointe them.:

4ll decemnt-minded citizens who take priile in fhe honour and
integrity of thelr country will sae te it that this orime ageingt
our Wational henour shall not go anpuniashes,

Yours sincensly,

B
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